
 
 

 
NOTIFICATION TO ATTEND MEETING OF THE PROTOCOL COMMITTEE 

TO BE HELD IN THE RICHARD O'CARROLL ROOM - CITY HALL 

ON THURSDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2018 AT 8.00 AM 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
THURSDAY 27 SEPTEMBER 2018

  PAGE 
 
1   Election of Chair of the Protocol Committee   

 
 

2   Election of the Vice Chair of the Protocol Committee   
 

 

3   Minutes of the meeting held on 28th June 2018 and matters arising:   
 

5 - 6 

4   Lord Mayors Receptions and Engagements of the Deputy Lord Mayor   
 

7 - 10 

5   Conferences:   
 

 

a)   Conferences Attended:  
 Councillors Dermot Lacey and Mary Freehill:  

MacGill Summer School, “The Future of Ireland in a New Europe: The 
Challenges Ahead”. Glenties, County Donegal. 22nd – 27th July 2018. 

 

 

b)   Conference Reports Received:  
 Councillors Dermot Lacey and Mary Freehill:  

 MacGill Summer School, “The Future of Ireland in a New Europe: The 
 Challenges Ahead”. 22nd – 27th July 2018. 
 

11 - 14 

6   Motion in the Name of Councillor Mannix Flynn referred by the South East Area 
Committee: (Managers Report Attached) 
 
“That this area committee calls on Dublin City Council (DCC) management 
to have City Hall reopened on Sundays.  Thousands of tourists and citizens 
wish to visit this unique building.  Sunday is the busiest day for tourists in 
the city.  City Hall was closed during the downturn in the economy and the 
cutbacks in DCC. City Hall is now back making a profit from its many 
activities such as civil marriage ceremonies and corporate receptions and 
promotions.   
 
There should be just one day set aside, Sunday, for sole public and visitor 
use without any interference from private bookings or receptions etc.  It 
also gives Councillors an opportunity to use the facility on this potentially 
quiet day.” 
 
 
 

15 - 16 



 

7   Motion in the name of Councillor Greg Kelly: 
 
“This committee calls on the Chief Executive to ensure that Dublin City 
Council through its Councillors keep their respective positions on the 
boards of outside bodies as they have in the past. 
 
As some Boards are dissolved from outside bodies to form new boards, 
DCC have been left off the formation. An example of this is the new 
Children’s Hospital Board who will have no DCC member even though DCC 
Councillors hold board positions on the current boards of Temple Street 
and Our Lady's Hospital Crumlin. This is further devaluing the role of a local 
councillor.” 
 

 

8   Motion in the name of Councillors Dermot Lacey and Mary Freehill: 
 
“DCC regrets the decision of government to renege on promoting a directly 
elected mayor for Dublin. We are conscious of the seriously weak local 
government system in Ireland which is very much out of kilter with the rest 
of the EU and runs contrary to the principals of subsidiarity as stated in the 
Nice Treaty. 
 
This Council is concerned about the many areas where the City Council is 
prevented from running the city effectively because of the lack of LA 
powers and we are disproportionately dependent on central government 
and very often the Courts to adjudicate on issues that should be within the 
normal power of the Council to resolve.   Because the Government of the 
day is over burdened with their own agenda, despite several requests to 
amend legislation, nothing happens. Examples of where we are seriously 
hampered are noise, housing tenancy, traffic. There are many other areas 
where as a Local Authority, we are prevented from carrying out our normal 
functions in the interest of the city’s wellbeing. 
 
We propose therefore that the DCC CEO prepares a list of areas where 
minor amendments to legislation would free up the Council and allow it 
function more effectively. When we have a completed list of possible 
amendments, we can approach Government and suggest that the Senate be 
given a lead role in dealing with this piece of work. This approach could go 
some way to strengthen local government” 
 

 

9   Proposal to amend Standing Order Number 1: 
 
Monthly Meetings of the Council shall be convened for the first Monday in each 
Month unless it is otherwise fixed by Resolution of the Council or in 
exceptional circumstances by an Order of the Lord Mayor.  No meeting shall 
be convened for a day which is a Public Holiday.  Where the first Monday of the 
month is a Public Holiday, the Monthly Meeting of the Council shall be convened 
for the following Monday.  No Meeting of the Council shall be convened during the 
month of August. 
 

 

10   Kathleen Clarke Portrait Selection Panel   
 

 

11   Web casting in Area offices   
 

 

12   Procedure for the Changing of Street Names   
 

17 - 26 

13   Approval for Councillor Attendance at the National Tourism Forum,  "Let's Talk 
Tourism" Conference on 9th November 2018 in County Kerry.   

27 - 28 



 

14   Request from the Irish Institute of Legal Executives to use the Council Chamber 
to hold a seminar in the Autumn of 2018   
 

 

15   Correspondence from Wexford County Council referred to the Protocol 
Committee by the City Council at its meeting of 3rd September 2018   
 

29 - 30 

16   Request from the UN High Commissioner for Refugees for Dublin City to sign a 
Statement of Solidarity #WithRefugees 
 
http://www.unhcr.org/withrefugees/cities  
 

 

17   Managers Report   
 

 

18   A.O.B.   
 

 

19   Proposed date of next meeting: 1st November 2018 at 8am in the Richard 
O'Carroll Room, City Hall   
 

 

 
 
Deirdre Ni Raghallaigh 
Senior Executive Officer 
21st September 2018 

http://www.unhcr.org/withrefugees/cities




 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE PROTOCOL COMMITTEE MEETING 
HELD ON THURSDAY 28 JUNE 2018 

 

 
1   Minutes of the meeting held on 7th June and matters arising 

 
Order: Minutes Agreed 
 

 

2   Lord Mayor's Receptions and Engagements of the Deputy Lord Mayor 
 
Order: Receptions Agreed and Recommended to Council 
 

 

3   Conferences:   
 

 

a)   Conferences Attended:  
Cllr. Paddy Bourke. AILG Joint Policing Boards. Castle Court Hotel, West Port, County 
Mayo. 18th - 19th May 2018. 
 
Order: Conferences Agreed and Recommended to Council 
 

 

b)   Conference Reports Received:  
Cllr. Paddy Bourke. AILG Joint Policing Boards. 18th – 19th May 2018 
 
Order: Noted 
 

 

4   Nomination to the Kathleen Clarke Portrait Selection Panel 
 
The Manager informed the Committee that Cllr Mannix Flynn has already been selected for the 
panel as a Member of the Commemorations Committee. The Members felt that it would be 
appropriate for a female Councillor to be nominated to the panel. 
 
Order: It was agreed that the Lord Mayor would seek nominations to the panel at the 
July monthly meeting of Council under Lord Mayors Business.   
 

 

5   Request to use the Council Chamber for Dublin Fringe Festival Event 
 
Order: It was agreed to allow the Dublin Fringe Festival to use the Council Chamber for 
the theatre event provided that the organisers covered the cost of the additional security 
required to open City Hall outside of its normal opening hours. It was estimated that 
these costs would be in the region of €1,800 
 

 

6   Review of the submission and debate of Council Motions 
 
The Members engaged in discussion expressing varying viewpoints on how motions should be 
dealt with at Council meetings. There was a general consensus that it would not be appropriate 
to change the process at this stage in the life of the current Council. However, the matter 
should be referred to Group Leaders for consideration regarding future changes.  
The suggestion that motions should be dealt with after the conclusion of any Special Council 
meeting up until 9.30pm was welcomed.   

 

Page 5



 
 

7   Managers Report 
 

 The Manager reported the Assistant Chief Executive Brendan Kenny would bring a 
report to Council on the review of the Area Structure as a result of the changes to the 
Local Electoral Areas contained within the Boundary Commission report.   

 

 

8   A.O.B. 
 

 Cllr D O’Farrell raised the issue of the availability of webcasting for those Area 
Committees who hold their meetings in the Local Civic Centres. The lack of webcasting 
and a transcript service had recently caused problems for constituents with hearing 
difficulties at a recent meeting of the North Central Area Committee. 
 
Order: It was agreed that report would be brought to the next meeting of the 
Protocol Committee on the matter.    
 

 Cllr N O Muiri expressed frustration at the difficulty the Environment SPC was 
experiencing in achieving a quorum for its meetings. The failure of Members of the SPC 
to attend meetings was impeding the work of the Committee.  

  
Order: The Manager to review the issue and revert back to the Members.   

 

 Cllr N O Muiri asked if it was possible to access the reports on the Council agenda 
individually through Modern Gov. 
 
Order: The Manager to investigate and revert back to the Members. 

 

 

9   Proposed Date of Next Meeting: 30th August or 27th September 2018 
 
Order: It was agreed that the next meeting would take place on 27th September 2018 at 
8am in the Richard O’Carroll Room, City Hall.  
 

 

 
Cllr Ciaran O’Moore 
Vice Chairperson 
Thursday 28 June 2018 
 
Attendance: 
 
Members: Members: Members: 
   
Brendan Carr Anne Feeney Mannix Flynn 
Teresa Keegan Dermot Lacey Ray McHugh 
Michael Mullooly Naoise O'Muiri Damian O'Farrell 
Ciaran O'Moore   
 
Officers   
Oonagh Casey Michael Gallagher  
 
Apologies:    
Deirdre Heney   

Page 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18

th
 September 2018 

 
 

Ms. Deirdre Ní Raghallaigh 
Senior Executive Officer, 
Chief Executive’s Department 
 
 
Dear Deirdre, 
 
I would be obliged if you would bring the following receptions for the months of June, July, August and 
September 2018, to the attention of the Protocol Committee. 

 
Yours sincerely, 
 
     
Nial Ring 

Lord Mayor of Dublin 

Date Function Nos 
 

25.06.18 Reception for the Election of the new Lord Mayor 100 

31.07.18 Annesley House Group 50 

03.08.18 Reception for the Liverpool Legends 30 

10.08.18 Reception for Inner City Helping the Homeless Volunteers 100 

18.08.18 St. Agatha's Parish Group 70 

19.08.18 Mayor of Galway & Guests 25 

22.08.18 Reception for the IRIS Project Volunteers 35 

23.08.18 VIP Malmo City officials group 27 

27.08.18 Reception for Save Kilmainham Mill Campaigners 80 

30.08.18 Sheriff Youth Club Volunteers 30 

08.09.18 Conference on the North Inner City Development Authority Bill 2018 80 

10.09.18 Homeless World Cup Team Reception 80 

19.09.18 Trinity College Group of Unions 60 

20.09.18 Robert Balagh Book Launch 100 

22.09.18 10th Year Anniversary of New Eastwall Bessborough 60 

24.09.18 Ballsbridge Lyons Club - Launch 80 

27.09.18 Lunch for Chinese Government officials & Bord Bia Delegation 20 

27.09.18 Reception for St. Anne, Fairview, Darndale & Popintree parkrun volunteers 80 

28.09.18 Family Carers Ireland Group 20 

28.09.18 VIP delegation from Pentathlon International 30 

28.09.18 Book Launch "Weapons of the Easter Rising" 80 

Page 7





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18

th
 September 2018 

 
 
 
Ms. Deirdre Ní Raghallaigh 
Senior Executive Officer, 
Chief Executive’s Department 
 
 
Dear Deirdre, 
 
Please see below, list of functions, receptions and events in which I had a Deputy/Representative attend on my 
behalf during the month of June, July, August and September 2018: 
 
 

Date: Function: DLM/Cllr: 
 

29.06.18 Opening of The Range Northside Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

29.06.18 Bethany Homes Survivors Group Memorial Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

07.07.18 Royal British Legion Annual Commemoration and Wreath 
Laying Ceremony 

Cllr. Ruairí McGinley 

14.07.18 French Embassy Remembrance Ceremony Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

18.07.18 Opening Ceremony of the Annual Liberties Festival Cllr. Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

20.07.18 Abbey Group celebrating 40 years in Business Cllr. Paddy McCartan 

21.07.18 Opening of Hanlon’s Corner Pub, NCR, Cabra East Cllr. Cieran Perry 

22.07.18 Donaghmede 10th Anniversary Summer Festival Celebrations Cllr. Mícheál Mac Donncha 

24.07.18 Opening of units in Reuben Street by Minister Murphy Cllr. Sonya Stapleton 

27.07.18 Tour de Brown Thomas and Arnotts Spinathon Cllr. Sonya Stapleton 

28.07.18 Grand Dublin Swim Cllr. Paddy McCartan 

28.07.18 Rathayatra 2018 Dublin Festival of Chariots Cllr. Paddy McCartan 

29.07.18 Annual Mass for Camino Society Ireland Cllr. Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

06.08.18 Irish C.N.D. Commemoration for the victims of the Hiroshima 
Bombing 

Cllr. Claire Byrne 

10.08.18 Open Day for Sean McDermott Street Swimming Pool Cllr. Gary Gannon 

13.08.18 Photocall Launch for the Great Dublin Bike Ride Cllr. Dermot Lacey 

13.08.18 Presentation of prizes at the Ladies Irish International Snooker 
Open 2018 

Cllr. Deirdre Heney 

18.08.18 Dinner & Presentation of Lord Mayor's Cup Cllr. Damian O’Farrell 

22.08.18 Community Confederation Cup event Cllr. Larry O’Toole 

25.08.18 DCC/LAWCO Heritage Week "Camac River Tells a Story" Cllr. Patrick Costello 

26.08.18 St. Patricks Mother and Baby Home Annual Reunion Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

Page 9



 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
    
Nial Ring 
Lord Mayor of Dublin 

04.09.18 Ballyfermot People's Art Exhibition part of 70th Anniversary 
Celebrations for Ballyfermot 

Cllr. Paul Hand 

05.09.18 North West Area City Neighbourhood Awards Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

06.09.18 North Central City Neighbourhood Local Awards Ceremony Cllr. Damian O’Farrell 

09.09.18 All Ireland Camogie Finals Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

17.09.18 Dublin University Mission to Chota Nagpur (DUMCN) reception Cllr. Ruairí McGinley 

18.09.18 Dublin Taxi Drivers Special Children's Outing Cllr. Christy Burke 

18.09.18 Dublin Ladies Senior Football Team Reception Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

18.09.18 FOLD Ireland Reception Cllr. Dáithí Doolan 

19.09.18 Launch of Clontarf office for Coldwell Banker Estates Cllr. Damian O’Farrell 

20.09.18 Ireland's Biggest Coffee Morning for Hospice Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

20.09.18 Launch of Strategic Plan for St. Teresa's Gardens Regeneration 
Board 

Cllr. Críona Ní Dhálaigh 

20.09.18 Irish Australian Chamber of Commerce Lunch Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

22.09.18 Ivorian Summer Cultural Festival Cllr. Janice Boylan 

24.09.18 7th Direct Dialogue between EU Capital Mayors and the 
European Commission 

Deputy Lord Mayor, Cllr. Cathleen Carney 
Boud 

Page 10



Page 11





Page 13



Page 14



DUBLIN CITY COUNCIL 
SOUTH EAST AREA COMMITTEE 

9th July 2018  
 
Motion 15 from Councillor Mannix Flynn  
That this area committee calls on Dublin City Council (DCC) management to have the City 
Hall reopened on Sundays.  Thousands of tourists and citizens wish to visit this unique 
building.  Sunday is the busiest day for tourists in the city.  The City Hall was closed during 
the downturn in the economy and the cutbacks in DCC.  The City Hall is now back making 
profit from its many activities such as civil marriage ceremonies and corporate receptions 
and promotions.   
 
There should just one day set aside, Sunday, for sole public and visitor use without any 
interference from private bookings or receptions etc.  It also gives us councillors an 
opportunity to use the facility on this potential quiet day. 
 
Report: 
City Hall is open Monday to Saturday and on a number of occasions we opened on Sundays 
and Bank Holidays (details below for past three years).  In 2015 City Hall was opened to the 
public on four Sundays as a trial initiative.  The Sunday openings were well advertised and 
free tours / talks were on offer but were poorly attended, the average number of visitors was 
120 per Sunday during this period.  
 
City Hall has a small team of staff (5) and currently they are stretched to capacity with 
Monday to Saturday opening and a significant number of events outside normal working 
hours.  During the summer period staff numbers are less to facilitate staff taking their annual 
leave entitlements. 
 
Therefore it is not currently feasible to commit to opening Sundays without engaging 
additional staff working non standard hours at an additional cost that may not be covered by 
income generated. 
 
We are aware that many other exhibitions / museums open on Sundays however many of 
these close on Mondays.  
 

2015 Event 

1st February Tradfest 

7th June Trial Sunday Opening  

14th June Trial Sunday Opening  

21st June Trial Sunday Opening  

28th June Trial Sunday Opening  

26th July Festival of Curiosity 

15th November  Festival of Curiosity 

2016 Event 

31st January Tradfest 

28th March (Bank Holiday 
Monday) 

1916 Commemoration 
Celebrations  

1st May Wolf Tone Concert 

20th November Benefit Concert – part of 
VIEW Festival 

2017 Event 

Sunday 29th Jan 2017 Tradfest children's concert   

Sunday 27th May 2018 Corporate Event 

Sunday 10th June 2018 Liz Grills Lectures  

Page 15



Contact:     
Jackie O’Reilly, Administrative Officer, Culture, Recreation, Community & Amenity 
Department, tel.: 222 7675, email: jackie.oreilly@dublincity.ie 
 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



   

Conference Programme 

Friday 9th November 
Day Forum 

Great Southern Killarney 

Start time: 9am 

Finish time: 5.30pm 

Programme contents: 

 Strategies for sustainable growth  

o Paul Kelly, CEO of Fáilte Ireland 

 International trends impacting on tourism: What they mean for Ireland  

o Mark Henry, Central Marketing Director at Tourism Ireland 

 Tourism – An industry strategy for growth to 2025  

o Eoghan O’Mara Walsh, CEO of Irish Tourism Industry Confederation (ITIC) 

 Brexit: The potential impact on tourism  

o C. Noel Sweeney, MD of Tourism & Transport Consult (TTC) 

o Deirdre Wells OBE, CEO of UKinbound 

o Peter Bellew, Chief Operations Officer at Ryanair 

o John McGrillen, Chief Executive of Tourism Northern Ireland 

 What the data says; hospitality & tourism in Ireland  
o Yvonne Holmes, Head of Business Performance & Analytics at AIB 

 

 Titanic Belfast – A case study  

o Judith Owens, CEO of TBL International (Titanic Belfast, SS Nomadic, Titanic 

Exhibition Centre) 

Page 27

https://www.ntf.ie/


 

 Learnings from other markets  

o Elizabeth Crabill, CEO of CIE Tours International 

o Ines Batz, Director of Northern Europe at DER Touristik 

 China: an opportunity  

o James Kenny, China Country Manager at Tourism Ireland 

 Closing panel discussion 

Ticket Price: €175.00 

Business Networking Dinner 

Great Southern Killarney 

 Start time: 8.00pm 

 3 course meal with wine 

 Skål President’s award for national contribution to tourism 

 After-dinner speaker 

 After-dinner entertainment 

 Semi-formal / Cocktail attire 

Ticket Price: €65.00 

Conference and Dinner package – €220 

 

Page 28



Page 29




	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 28th June 2018 and matters arising:
	Minutes

	4 Lord Mayors Receptions and Engagements of the Deputy Lord Mayor
	Deputies Jun - Sept 18

	5b) Conference Reports Received:
	Mary Freehill MacGill Summer School

	6 Motion in the Name of Councillor Mannix Flynn referred by the South East Area Committee: (Managers Report Attached)
	12 Procedure for the Changing of Street Names
	13 Approval for Councillor Attendance at the National Tourism Forum,  "Let's Talk Tourism" Conference on 9th November 2018 in County Kerry.
	15 Correspondence from Wexford County Council referred to the Protocol Committee by the City Council at its meeting of 3rd September 2018



